
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds LU7 1HD 

 
9 July 2021 
 
To:  Members of the Health Services Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
R Goodchild, V Harvey, S Jones, T Morris, S Owen and G Perham) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 
 
Central Bedfordshire Councillors: C Hegley, T Stock  
D Blackmun (HealthWatch Central Bedfordshire) 
P Coker (Central Bedfordshire Council) 
Dr J Henderson (Bassett Road Surgery) 
N Barnes (Beds Clinical Commissioning Group) 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Health Services Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Thursday, 15 July 2021 commencing at 1.00 pm in the Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

 

 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP Thursday, 15 July 2021 
 

 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s Register 
of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by the 
Council (see Dispensation Procedure).  
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g).  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting but are asked to 
note that attendance numbers must be limited to mitigate for Covid-19 risks. 
Please contact us to advise if you wish to attend before 4pm on the day 
before the meeting. Written representations may also be submitted before 
4pm on the day before the meeting.  

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 (a)  To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Task and 
Finish Group meeting held on 18 December 2020 (attached) in accordance 
with Standing Order 12. 
 
(b)  To receive any updates (if applicable). 
 

5.   CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL: INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE 

HUBS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 22) 

 

 (a) To receive and note the presentation given to the Central Bedfordshire 
Health and Wellbeing Board in April 2021 (attached).  
 
(b) To receive an update from Patricia Coker of Central Bedfordshire 
Council. 
 

6.   NEXT STEPS  

 

 To discuss and agree any next steps. 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



   
   

Page 5 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

FRIDAY 18 DECEMBER 2020 AT 1400 HOURS  
 

Present: Councillors  G Perham – in the Chair 
  D Bowater 
  S Jones 
  T Morris 
  R Goodchild 
  S Owen 
  V Harvey 
      

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central  
  Services) 
  Cllr T Stock (Central Bedfordshire Council) 
  Cllr C Hegley (Central Bedfordshire Council) –  
  part meeting 
  P Coker (Central Bedfordshire Council)  
  Dr J Henderson (Bassett Road Surgery &  

Leighton-Linslade PCN)   

Nikki Barnes (Associate Director 
Transformation & Integration, Bedfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS)  
Cllr B Spurr (Central Bedfordshire Council) 
 

       Members of the Public:   0  
 
 
07/HS APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence were received and accepted from Diana Blackmun of 
HealthWatch Central Bedfordshire.  

 
08/HS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

  Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 

 
 No declarations were made or dispensations requested. 

 
09/HS QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 There were no questions from members of the public.  
  

10/HS MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

(a) The Task and Finish Group received the minutes of the Health Services 
Task and Finish Group meeting held on 5 March 2020. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health Services Task & Finish Group 18 DECEMBER 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 6 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Services Task and Finish Group 
meeting held 5 March  2020 be approved as a correct record and would be 
signed at a later date, when safe to do so. 
 
(b) The Task and Finish Group formally received the letter and presentation 
submitted by the Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group in May 2020, in 
response to the queries raised at the meeting held on 5 March 2020. The 
information had been circulated previously by email for information.  

 
RESOLVED to note the information. 

 
 11/HS CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL: INTEGRATED CARE SERVICES 

UPDATE  
 
 The Task and Finish Group received a copy of a report on the Integrated Health 

Hub programme which had been presented to the Central Bedfordshire Health 
and Wellbeing Board on 28 October 2020 and a verbal update was given by N 
Barnes of the Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and P Coker of 
Central Bedfordshire Council. 

 
 By way of background, it was clarified that the wider context was a programme 

to deliver five integrated health care hubs across Bedfordshire. Significant 
progress had been made with the first hub in Dunstable and this would be used 
as a blueprint for the development of the remaining hubs. Dunstable had been 
designated the first hub for development as Dunstable GPs were most 
constrained by their premises, whereas Leighton-Linslade as a collective of 
practices had more capacity than other areas.  

 
 The hub programme was not simply the delivery of a larger building but moving 

towards delivery of healthcare services by multiple providers in a much more 
integrated way. This would include primary care but also community healthcare, 
mental health services and social care.  

 
 Dr Henderson advised that the Leighton-Linslade Primary Care Network (“PCN”) 

was already working together in a more integrated way and was in the process 
of appointing to some new, additional roles such as physiotherapists, prescribers 
and pharmacists. A kind of “interim hub” would be based at the Leighton Road 
surgery as the premises with the greatest capacity for additional services. 

 
 As far as the Leighton-Linslade hub, a strategic outline case had been developed 

and the next stage would be to commission service model work. This was 
anticipated to take place in the middle of 2021. The service modelling would 
provide input and help shape what service delivery might look like and help 
identify the size of building which would be required and therefore the likely cost. 
At that point, options to identify capital requirements could start be to be 
explored.  

 
 P Coker and Cllr T Stock of Central Bedfordshire Council noted the inevitable 

delay caused by the Covid-19 pandemic and that future timescales were also 
subject to uncertainty for this reason. The roll-out of vaccine delivery was the 

Page 2



Health Services Task & Finish Group 18 DECEMBER 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 7 

overriding focus for the NHS at this time. Any updates to timescales would be 
reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
A number of Town Councillors spoke to comment and ask questions. The 
geographical location of a Leighton-Linslade hub was felt to be crucial and it was 
questioned whether one location would be easily accessible to all, given the 
existing traffic and transport issues in the town. It was noted that the population 
of the town was ageing and that provision of minor injury care was important to 
reduce the number of people going to hospital accident and emergency 
departments.  
 
Questions were raised regarding how the prioritisation of the five hubs had been 
undertaken, why the strategic outline case was not available to town councillors 
and residents, how the hub would be funded, what the proposed timescales were 
and whether local councillors would have the opportunity to input into the service 
model work to be commissioned.  
 
P Coker advised that the strategic case document contained no detail but simply 
demonstrated the need for an integrated hub in the town. The town council would 
have the opportunity to input into the service modelling work at the right time and 
stage in the process. 
 
It was clarified that funding for the first two hubs had been included in Central 
Bedfordshire Council’s four year financial plan. This equated to £15million for 
each hub (Dunstable and Biggleswade). Central Bedfordshire Council could, as 
one option, fund the building of the hub and then charge rent to the Clinical 
Commissioning Group to recoup the investment over time. No funding stream 
had been identified for the next three hubs as there was no detail available as 
yet, but the Leighton-Linslade hub was identified as a “pending” project in Central 
Bedfordshire Council’s reserve capital programme. Once the service model work 
had been completed, an outline business case would be the next stage.  
 
It was clarified that although land had been identified in the East of Leighton-
Linslade Framework Plan for a medical centre, this was only an allocation of 
land, not associated funding. Since development of the Plan, there had been a 
national change in direction to the provision of integrated health and care hubs 
rather than small, individual GP practices.  
 
Existing assets in the town were discussed but it was felt that none of the existing 
facilities were deemed large enough to meet requirements. The CCG would 
need to look carefully at which services could or should be co-located into one 
hub. The service model work would include detailed conversations with the GP 
practices and these would be professionally facilitated.   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



Health Services Task & Finish Group 18 DECEMBER 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 8 

 12/HS NEXT STEPS  
 

 P Coker advised that the strategic outline case was a working document for 
officers and would need further work before it could be shared. However, the 
engagement work which had helped inform the strategic outline case could be 
shared. 

 
 Continuing to deal with the Covid-19 pandemic would be a necessary priority for 

the immediate future and time would be needed before there would be any 
meaningful progress to report. It was suggested that a next meeting be held in 
June 2021 with the possibility of Town Councillors meeting sooner to discuss 
any information coming forward after the meeting.  

 
 Everyone present was thanked for giving their time to attend the meeting, given 

the ongoing pressures of the current pandemic situation. 
  
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 1541 hours. 
 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 DECEMBER  2020. 

  

 

 

Chair                          TBC 2021     

Page 4



Patricia Coker
Nikki Barnes  

Integrated Health & 
Care Hubs

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 5



Introduction

• Progress against 
programme milestones

• Emerging designs for 
Dunstable Hub

• Next steps and 
timescales

• Challenges faced

P
age 6



Proposed Hubs in Central Bedfordshire

P
age 7



West Mid Beds 
IHCH target 
completion

Houghton Regis 
IHCH target 
completion 

Ivel Valley IHCH
Completion

2019 2022 2023 2024

Overarching programme
(Subject to Business Case Approvals & funding)

2020 2021

Dunstable Hub ConstructionComplete Dunstable OBC & FBC

Ivel Valley Service Model, designs  & 
OBC

IV FBC IV Construction 

WMB Service Model, 
designs  & OBC

WMB FBC

Dunstable  
Integrated 
Health and 
Care Hub

WMB Construction
LB S106 

negotiations LB Service 
Model

HR S106 
negotiations

Leighton 
Buzzard 

IHCH target 
completion

LB Construction

LB S106 
negotiations

LB OBC & FBC

HR Service Model, designs & OBC

HR FBC

HR Construction

Covid-19

today

P
age 8



Chiltern Vale Integrated Health and 
Care Hub

P
age 9



•
Integrated Long 
Term Condition 
Management (& 

potential for 
outreach of 

specialist clinicians)

Prevention, Early 
Intervention & 

Self Care

Primary Care at 
scale (inc. room for 
growth & training)

Planned Care

Multi-disciplinary 
frail/elderly care

Same Day and 
Extended Access

Children’s & 
Maternity 
Services

Mental Health 
and Addiction 

Services

Integrated 
Reception & 

Waiting Areas

PRIMARY CARE NETWORK
• Need-led population 

health management
• Data driven

• Integrated health and 
social care – building 

designed for maximum 
integration

• Flexible design for 
future events

Community 
Area & Café

Learning 
Disabilities

Minor 
Surgery

Adult Community 
Health Clinics & 
Therapies – inc
Phlebotomy & 

Podiatry

Online 

Access
to 

Services

Base for 
Out of 
Hours 

Service

Social/ 
leisure 

activities

Voluntary 
sector

Mental Health –
Wellbeing Svc, Older 

Persons, CMHT, 
memory assessment, 
dementia intensive 

support

Adult  
Social Care

Parking for 
mobile 

investigations

Shared 
touchdown, 

admin space & 
meeting 
rooms

Children’s  
Social Care

Chiltern Vale – Preferred Service Model

Dentist

P
age 10



Programme Milestones Timeline

Planning Pre-App End July 2019 (submitted End of August)

RIBA Stage 1 Preparation of Brief Mid July 2019 (completed August)

RIBA Stage 2 Concept Design sign off End September 2019 (completed September)

RIBA Stage 3 Developed Design Start End September (underway)

RIBA Stage 4 Developed Design Complete Early December (now January 2020)

Submit Planning Application June 2020

RIBA Stage 4 Technical Design Start January 2020 (now February 2020)

RIBA Stage 4 Technical Design Completion 
(includes covid redesign)

March 2021

Pre-start planning conditions discharge 
(number)

March 2021

Conclude Lease Discussions April 2021

Sign Build Contract April 2021

Public Engagement April 2021

Start on Site May 2021

Completion Mid 2023

P
age 11



Chiltern 
Vale Hub

• How we have got to where we are now?

• Covid-19 impacts understood

• Overall high-level design philosophy review:
– Redesign to reflect covid-19 restrictions, or

– Redesign to allow flexibility in event of future pandemic (agreed)

• Revisited Design with identified service providers

• Service providers and new ways of working

• Planning application (June ‘20) reflects this

• Sustainability theme in design

• Planning permission granted October ‘20

• Space remodelled to minimise voids following service 
provider rationalisation

The service model, Schedule of Accomodation and designs have been developed through 
constant conversations with all key stakeholders.

We have limited the amount of dedicated space in the building with a particular focus on shared 
areas & flexibility to make the building efficient and to allow to meet future demands.

P
age 12



Chiltern Vale Hub

Development of the Schedule of 
Accommodation and Covid-19 response

• BMA space allowances used but 
revised to facilitate digital 
healthcare, PCN space now 
included

• Template for each service, and 
liaison with healthcare planner, 
revised to reflect new ways of 
working

• Reviewed activity levels for 
services and factored in 
development plans, revised to 
reflect reduced patient demand 
for physical space

• Challenged assumptions and 
maximised opportunities to share 
utilisation of space

• Generic room sizes based on 
Health Building Standards 
(HBNs/HTNs) – 8 and 16m²

• Main tenants expected to lease 
core space and contribute fair 
share % to shared areas and some 
of bookable space.

• Site massing unchanged.

P
age 13



Chiltern Vale Hub

What have we done since last update 

• Detailed service and activity modelling with 
stakeholders (28 services expected to deliver 
services from the Hub). 

• Stage 3 design complete, stage 4 design (after 
comprehensive covid-19 redesign)

• Rent and service charge figures formally notified to 
all service providers.

• Commissioned VR fly-throughs and CGI images to 
help future users understand look and feel.

P
age 14



Chiltern Vale 
Hub

• What are we doing?

• Reviewing Stage 4 designs. 

• Discharging pre-start planning conditions

• Preparing site.

• Preparing communications message for site 
phase.

• Ongoing stakeholder engagement. 

• and need to do:

• Conclude formal negotiations with tenants 
around occupation arrangements (once tenants 
return to business-as-usual following covid-19 
response)

• Executive Paper(CBC), Paper to Primary Care 
Combined Commissioning Committee

• Conduct community engagement (throughout 
scheme)

• Procurement and construction

P
age 15



Site Masterplan

The Hub Building has rotated to provide more sense of arrival and off-road drop of areas

No requirement for overspill car park

Substantial footpath, lit by low-level bollards to and from Dog Kennel Down

Masterplan

P
age 16



Chiltern Vale Hub – Key Issues

4-month slippage in programme – due to covid-19 redesign and partner unavailability

Service Model fully agreed so design at final iteration

Discussions on Head lease, which has been delayed by up to at least 12 weeks due to 
systemwide response to Covid19,  is being finalised. 

Space for the wider Primary Care Network functions now included in the Hub  

Commence engagement for involvement with local population. 

P
age 17



Ivel Valley 
Hub

• Agreement in principle 
reached on land deal

• Work on developing Service 
Model and Schedule of 
Accommodation for Ivel 
Valley Hub paused due to 
health partners’ covid-19 
responses.

• Programme Plan anticipates 
delivery of Hub 2024.

P
age 18



Leighton Buzzard, West Mid 
Bedfordshire and Houghton 
Regis Hubs

• Reserve line in MTFP for Leighton Buzzard & West 
Mid Bedfordshire.

• Stakeholder engagement undertaken.
• Reviewed the needs and site options in each 

locality – including “spokes”.
• NHS Strategic Outline Case (SOC) complete, 

progressing through governance structures within 
BCCG. 

• Unsuccessful for OPE bid
• Next stage will be to secure funding to develop 

NHS Outline Business Cases (OBC) in phases, and 
to review Section 106 contributions in relation to 
Houghton Regis and Leighton Buzzard.

• Planning to commence work on Service Model 
and Schedule of Accommodation for West Mid 
Beds Hub Feb/March 2021.

P
age 19



Hub and 
Spoke 

approach 

Scoping framework for Health and Wellbeing Spokes

Rural topography can sometimes lead to inequality of access to 
health and care services.

Important to develop a service delivery model that is efficient 
and serves people in rural locations effectively

Hub and Spoke approach provides a network of care settings in 
a Hub, which offers a much broader range of services, 
complemented by the Spokes with a more limited offer in rural 
settings.

Service models for the Hubs will also incorporate options for 
Spokes which will be tailored to local need.

P
age 20



Next steps 
– as 

currently 
planned

• Conclude negotiations with tenants for 
Dunstable Hub.

• Finalise the design.

• Procurement and commence on-site in 
Dunstable – May 2021.

• Develop Service Model, Schedule of 
Accommodation (SOA)  & OBC for Ivel Valley 
IHCH (Biggleswade) – from June 2021.

• Develop Service Model & SOA to inform 
planning for West Mid Beds IHCH –from July 
2021.

• Continue to pursue Capital and land 
contributions from developers and via ICS.

• Continue to progress integrated pathways 
and services, particularly via PCNs and 
Health and Care Partnership. 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 22


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL: INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE HUBS UPDATE

